From: chad@ayerdesigngroup.com

To: Mouck, Carrie; Wolfley, Jolene; Rodenbeck, Jay B.; Armijo, Ernest M.

Cc: birk@ayerdesigngroup.com

Subject: Lexus of Albuquerque Nonstandard Easement (PR-2023-008423 / SI-2023-00606)
Date: Monday, June 26, 2023 1:53:46 PM

Attachments: Recorded Cross Access Easement Agreement.pdf

[EXTERNAL] Forward to phishing@cabg.gov and delete if an email
causes any concern.

Carrie and Ernest,

Please find the attached, recorded Cross Access Easement Agreement associated with the Lexus of
Albuquerque project (PR-2023-008423 / 51-2023-00606).

Please let us know if you require any additional information

Thanks again for your assistance with our project.

Regards,

Chad Chastain, RLA LEED AP
AYER DESIGN GROUP, LLC
215 Johnston Street

Rock Hill, SC 29730
803.328.5858

chad@ayerdesigngroup.com
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ACCESS FASEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS ACCESS EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into as
of M o 5 , 2023 (the “Effective Date”) by Pan American Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona
limited-Hability company (“Pan Anr’) and TDF Holdings, LLC, a New Mexico limited liability
company (“TDF”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Pan Am is the holder of fee simple title a tract of land located in Bernalillo
County, New Mexico, known as Tract C and TDF is the holder of fee simple title to a tract of land
in Bernalillo County, New Mexico, known as Tract B, and as more particularly described in
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. Tract B and Tract C shall be collectively
referred to as the “Tracts” and individually as “Tract”;

WHEREAS, Pan Am and TDF desire to ensure that blanket access is granted to each Tract,
over and across each other Tract for the purposes set forth in this Agreement, including any portion
of a Tract needed to access any public right of way; and

WHEREAS, Pan Am and TDF, as owners of the Tracts, agrees to provide the requested
easements for ingress and egress over, upon and across each Tract, for vehicles and persons from
each of Tract B and Tract C, in order to access the other Tracts for the integrated use of the Tracts
for parking, ingress, and egress, on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and
confessed, the Tract owners hereto hereby agrees as follows:

1. Grant of Access Easement. Pan Am and TDF, as owners of the Tracts, hereby
GRANTS AND CONVEYS to each other, and the respective successors and assigns of each of
Tract B and Tract C, and their respective tenants, licensees, employees, agents, contractors, guests
and invitees, a perpetual, non-exclusive access easement on, over and across all of those portions
of each Tract consisting of all roads, driveways, parking spaces, walkways, sidewalks, access
points and other improvements thereon (the “Easement Areas™) for purposes of vehicular and
pedestrian ingress and egress to and from the Easement Areas, any public right of way and for
parking of vehicles, motorcycles, motor bikes, bicycles, and maintenance, repair, replacement,
restoration of the Easement Areas (the “Easement”). TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said Easement
unto Pan Am and TDF, and their respective successors and assigns, together with the right and
privilege at any and all times to use the Easement Areas, or any part thereof, for the purposes
authorized herein. Pan Am and TDF do hereby agree to be bound, its successors and permitted
assigns, TO WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the Easement and rights
granted herein, its respective successors and permitted assigns, against every person whomsoever
lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof by, thlough or under Pan Am and TDF,
respectively, but not otherwise.

2 Maintenance. The owners of each Tract shall install, maintain, replace and repair,
as needed, the portion of Easement Areas of its own Tract. The Easement Areas shall be maintained
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by the Tract owners in a neat, attractive, clean and safe condition. Any and all construction,
maintenance and repair of the Easement Areas and related improvements shall be performed
promptly, in a good and workmanlike manner and in a manner which does not interfere with the
rights granted to the Tract owners to this Agreement.

3. Indemnity. Each Tract owner shall be responsible for and shall indemnify, hold
harmless, and, if requested in the sole and absolute discretion of the Indemnitee Party (as
hereinafter defined), defend (with counsel approved by such Indemnitee Party) the other Tract
owners (the “Indemnitee Party”) from and against any and all claims, losses, and expenses,
including without limitation all costs, demands, damages, suits, judgments, fines, penalties,
liabilities, debts, liens, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, and causes of action of whatsoever
kind or character, suffered or incurred by the Indemnitee Party, to the extent caused by, arising
from or relating to a Tract owner’s (i) interference with another Tract owner’s use and enjoyment
of the Easement, (ii) failure to perform its obligations arising under this Agreement, or (iii) breach
of any representation or warranty made pursuant to this Agreement; except to the extent caused by
the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitee Party.

4. Covenants to Run with Land. All provisions of this Agreement, including the
benefits and burdens set forth herein, shall run with the land and are binding upon and shall inure
to the benefit of the successors and permitted assigns of the Tract owners hereto.

5. Non-Exclusivity. The Tract owners hereby acknowledge and agree that the
Easement is non-exclusive and, except to the extent otherwise provided herein, shall not prohibit
Pan Am or TDF from using the Fasement Areas, or any portions thereof, and/or from granting
such other easements, rights, rights-of-way and privileges over and across the Easement Areas to
any other persons or entities; provided, however, that any such use, easements, rights, rights-of-
way and privileges hereafter granted over and across the Easement Areas shall not matetially
interfere with the use or enjoyment of the Easement granted hereunder.

6. Authority. Pan Am and TDF hereby represents, warrants and covenants that (i) this
Agreement is valid, binding and enforceable against each party in accordance with its terms,
(i) Pan Am and TDF each has the entity power and authority to execute, deliver, and perform its
obligations arising under, this Agreement, (iii) Pan Am and TDF has each taken all corporate
actions required for the execufion, delivery, and performance of this Agreement, and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and (iv) Pan Am’s and TDF’s
compliance with or fulfillment of the terms and conditions of this Agreement will not conflict with,
or result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute a default under, any
contract to which each party is a party or by which each party is otherwise bound or violate the
rights of any other person or entity.

7. No Rights in Public: No Implied Easements. Nothing contained herein shall be
construed as creating any rights in the general public or as dedicating for public use all or any
portion of the Easement Areas.

8. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given herein shall be in writing and
shall be deemed delivered when actually received (or delivery refused) or, if earlier and regardless
of whether or not actually received, three (3) business days after the date on which the notice is
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deposited in the United States Mail, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, addressed to the parties as follows:

To Pan Am and TDF: Attn: Don Mackey
dmackiaidonmackey.com

Copy to: Jennings, Strouss & Salmon, PLC
One East Washington Street, Suite 1900
Phoenix, A7 85004

Each Tract owner shall have the right to change its address for purposes of notice by giving notice
of such change as hereinabove provided.

9, Amendment and Waiver. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms
of this Agreement, or waiver by any Tract owner of any failure to satisfy any condition or
stipulation contained herein, shall be binding unless it is in writing and evidenced by an instrument
specifically referencing this Agreement, duly executed by the Tract owners, and properly
acknowledged and recorded in the Official Public Records of Bernalillo County, New Mexico, nor
shall any such waiver be deemed to extend to any prior or subsequent default, misrepresentation,
or breach or affect in any way any rights arising by virtue of any prior or subsequent default,
misrepresentation or breach unless and except to the extent expressly provided therein.

10.  Subordination. This Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder
are subject to all valid existing restrictions, covenants, conditions, rights-of-way, easements,
ordinances, mineral reservations, royalty reservations and other matters of record, if any, affecting
all or any part of the Easement Areas unless and except to the extent such matters are expressly
subordinated hereto in accordance with law.

11.  Severability. If a provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provision shall be considered as having been
severed from this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such provision
never comprised a part hereof, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full
force and effect, and in lieu of such provision there shall be added automatically as part of this
Agreement a provision as similar in its terms to such provision as may be possible and be legal,
valid and enforceable.

12.  Construction. All article or section titles or captions in this Agreement are for
convenience only, shall not be deemed part of this Agreement and in no way define, limit, extend
or describe the scope or intent of any provisions hereof, If any ambiguity or question of intent or
interpretation arises as to this Agreement, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly
by the Tract owners hereto, and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or
disfavoring any Tract owner hereto by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this
Agreement. This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any person or entity
other than the Tract owners hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
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13.  Time of Essence. It is expressly agreed by the Tract owners hereto that time is of
the essence with respect to this Agreement.

14.  Expenses. Except as expresily provided herein, each Tract owner will separately
bear all expenses incurred by it in connection with this Agreement and in connection with all
actions required to be taken by such Tract owner hereunder and will be responsible for discharging
all taxes, charges or fees imposed on such Tract owner by any governmental or administrative
authority in connection with the transactions contemplated herein. In the event that a Tract owner
hereto seeks to enforce a claim against another Tract owner arising from or relating to this
Agreement, the substantially prevailing party will be reimbursed by the non-prevailing party for
all attorneys’ fees and expenses (including a reasonable hourly fee for in-house legal counsel)
incurred as a result of enforcing and/or defending such claim. The “substantially prevailing party”
means the party determined by the court to have most nearly prevailed, even, if such party did not
prevail in all matters, not necessarily the one in whose favor a judgment is rendered. Further, in
the event of any default by a party hereunder, such defaulting party will pay all attorneys’ fees and
expenses (including a reasonable hourly fee for in-house legal counsel) incurred by the other party
in connection with such default, whether or not any litigation is commenced.

15.  Goveming Law And Venue. THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SHALL GOVERN THE VALIDITY, CONSTRUCTION, ENFORCEMENT, AND
INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT FOR THE CONFLICT OF LAWS
PROVISIONS THEREOF. THE TRACT OWNERS HERETO AGREE THAT ALL CLAIMS,
DISPUTES, AND OTHER MATTERS IN QUESTION-ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO
THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE BREACH THEREOF, SHALL BE DECIDED BY
PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED AND LITIGATED IN A COURT OF COMPETENT
JURISDICTION SITUATED INBERNALILLO COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, AND THE TRACT
OWNERS HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY CONSENT TO THE
JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS AND HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVE ANY DEFENSE OF AN INCONVENIENT FORUM TO THE
MAINTENANCE OF ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING IN ANY SUCH COURT, ANY
OBJECTION TO VENUE WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING,
AND ANY RIGHT OF ' JURISDICTION ON ACCOUNT OF THE PLACE OF
INCORPORATION, BUSINESS, RESIDENCE OR DOMICILE OF ANY PARTY HERETO OR
THE LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY.

16. Entire Agreement This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the
Tract owners with respect to the subject matter hereof and supérsedes all prior agreements,
understandings and statements, writien or _oral with respect thereto.

17.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be exccuted in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument. Facsimile signatures shall be given the same effect as original signatures.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the
date first above written.

Pan AM:

Pan American Holdings, L.L.C.
Arizona limited Ifability company "

Nalncbﬁ&\& \< W &Kk\&)u\
_ APt oshen, ot
Norbhsbad Tog<k ClG:\r @y,

By:

STATE OF 1(“\'( Ve § \\mu\’ab h 200
§
COUNTY OF? W, §

Thls nstr uplw acknowledged before me on the % day of \(\\Qh\\ , 2023,
by\ QLI of Pan American Holdmgs, LLC a

Arizona hmlted liability compan§ on behalf of said company.

T MARY CATHERINE ANDERSON g

s e ) Notary Public - Arizona

Pima County Notary Public N
Cammission # 616739
‘wy-Comm, Expires Dec 19, 2025

TDF:

TDF Holdings, LLE, a New Mexico "
limited liability company .

By:

Namem\\ﬁ \< \\'\Q’&_\K\M

Fiffe: 1T oSkeo. b e

7 Nt how Wosl Gatch

.

STATE OFL\( 2o, § SN EEANNY
§

COUNTY 01} \Oha §

Tlm i ment was acknowledged before me on the % day of Y\'\QN , 2023,
\c\x ni QN of TDF Holdings, LLC, a Néw Mexico
hmlted liability company, on behalf of said company.

MARY CATHERINE ANDERSON

Notary Public - Arizona \ : 4
Pima County \ \\\.’

Commission # 616739

My-€emm. Expires Dec 19, 2025 Notary Public \

X
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Exhibit A

Legal Description

TRACT B:

Tract B of the Plat of Tract A, B and C of the LLD Subdivision, as the same is shown and
designated on the plat of said addition, filed in the Office of the County Clerk of Bernalillo
County, New Mexico on March 26, 2004, in Plat Book 2004C, Page 102.

TRACT C:

Tract C of the Plat of Tract A, B and C of the LLD Subdivision, as the same is shown and

designated on the plat of said addition, filed in the Office of the County Clerk of Bernalillo
County, New Mexico on March 26, 2004, in Plat Book 2004C, Page 102.
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